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1. Orvigin
In order to understand the organization of the 8lovaks in
America, one must realize where thege people came from and how they

viewsed themselves. In the 19th century, there was no such place as
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zechoslovakia which would logically encase the Slovak people. The
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Slovaks were ruled by the dual monarchy of Austria-Hungary which
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religious backgrounds in Lutheranism, Greek Orthodoxy, and Roman
Catholiciesm (Bomba). They survived by speaking their own dizlect
of the 8lovak language and by remaining a people. Some of the

counties they lived in were Saris, Piestany, %Zvolen, and Poprad.

The tyranny of their Hungarian rulers, namely the Magvars, is what
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nly drove them from their homeland (Kucharik). But that was not

the only reason. Along with the despotism and exploitation, there
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was also a rong economic reason. There was little good land in
their regions and that was taken, so they looked to America for
riches and adventure (Dolak 11).

And so they came to America. According to one source, by

1899 there were betwsen 160,000 and 200,000 Slovaks in the United

&

States™,. They came and settled in the eastern and midwestern
states of Pennsylvania, New York, New Jersey, Connecticut, Ohio,

T1lineois, and Minnesota (Nelson 277). Anna Povyak, who was born in
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the United States in 1903, explained how her Slovak family came to
America. Her mother’s father first came by himself to Pennsylvania
and worked for a coal company in the boiler room. He earned enough

&

money so that whichever of his family wanted to follow him, could.



Her mother then took her 5 offer and came ov - O
America by herself to CGensville, Pennsylvania. Fortunately, they
had & 8lovak (Poppyvak). But

not every immigrant wag that fortunate. And even if they came to

a clty near a church, that did not mean they would be ministered by
a Slovak Lutheran pastor. In rsey, where Slovaks

also gathered for worship, the congr tion had to look toe German
and Swedish Lutherans for preaching and even to Czech and English
Preasbyvterians (Centennial 4).

The Slovaks who came to the area of Buckhorn, Wisconsin, which

.

is now Cudahy, corganized themselves in a wayv that was not unusual.

In 1892, they formed a chapter of the 8Slovak Evangelical Union

]

which was a fraternal insurance company. "It ig no secret that

o

primary purpose of this fraternal order was to found a Lutheran

h {(Moravec 5). This Union playved 2 major role in the

Tormation of the Slovak Synod, and later on in its problems.

But before the Synod was founded, there were simply a number

of dindependent, confessional 8Slovak Lutheran churches scattered
avound the country. Therefore, other synod
bringing them into their folds. The Pittsbhurgh Synod of the

vaks in the coal

General Council worksad

Western Pennsylvania, the Joint Synod of Ohio supported work among

blovaks in Ohio, and the Missouri Synod trained 4lovak student
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ministry {(Nelson 261). But the 38lovak Lutherans wanted to remain
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8lovak Lutherans.



17, Organization

Asg mentioned earlier, the Slovak

major role in the formaetion of a Slovak Synod. It

the push came to ovganize the Slovak churches.

A Seniocrate of five pastors was formed on June 5, 1894, at the

insistence of the lavmen during meetings of Slovak Bvangelical

Union in Mahanoy City, Penngylvania. The BSeniorate did not last

very long, but the idea o
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meeting wau h d at Braddock, Pa. on January 16m17, 1900. The
third meeting was held on June 4, 1902, also a Braddock, Pa.

(8ynod 2)

The four were discussed and which formed the

basis for the organization of the Svynod in their final form after
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the second Braddock meeting are fol

Qs

Point 1L
The Slovak §M‘£lvau Evangelical Chu
egssion in the Unite QiaL@Q of North
inity of the Holy %“ iotures (canonical). Iits denial has
served and {still) serves merely Vh% cause of i ]
egaion.

lroh of the 5
America confesses the

Individual churches (or
independent with regarq te
matters pertaining to salvat
] Points fizxed

CDHQ etely
wweaver, 1n
‘y the Four
. Praddock

tive service
Cﬂuvrh
1ff1




separate ourhel
it fo the Sp"

over
c zrom
ing of
and

{..4{.”‘3

with all true b@li ey e and @Lect of CGod.
And so the path was c¢lear for the official organization of a

cpte

were:

ay .

&\/‘q ~

4
9

or o

BRSNS

;X 8,
and Paul, Guttenberg, N.J.
he i Charlerol, Pa.
Raritan, N.J.

Church,
,

-
U

ATy

A A

- . T el Ny
e, Pa. {Dolak 43)

L3
o B

doin t

pro-Miss
organized
and th
Americ

to

2

one-half

& %T oval.

a3
DY

Ch\,» l‘




o

Amervica (19
nongeogrs
(Nelson

52) the Slovak Zion Synod continued as 2 bilingual
cal synod, the only one in the new church bo

’\35

CO‘:ﬁ""\Q

1PN
27

N3

N e

The firsgt portion of the up and running bhistory of whalt was

th dilemmas and achievement. Two leading men o©

gident Dani

synod in 1905, President Lauce left bhecause of the lack of
support for his confess , and Pastor Rvacalas left
baecause of the Synod’s warming velations with the Synodical

PR R T R

; relatlons
T

f SELC

~her controversy which plagu

o~

was the gueastion of whether or nos

1.

wide communion announcements. Bul the

1

an what was communicated at the time. In his book,

teorge Dolak guoted the new Synod John

writing thalt only Holy Trinity in Cleveland, Ohio had communion

Lty in Garfield,

had ommunilon

R S <SR, - e b L
the Tacts, Lhe

L




voung synod solved thed

1826, oy communlon was no |

BSLZe Was an assea

—

when 1t came Lo

g@l il T
gelical L

was seyved by Presid

can:

itheran Church of Cu
Wisconsin

Paelikan dur

Though he

. PFor Reverend Tuhy frer |

Bynod, had gone on to be a missi

ran Church

Synod’s

= home and home for

(Capsule)

Organizing into a

N




Pl

Slovak Ewv.

S

was 18]

regsent at the Synodical Conference

Convention, New Ulm, Mn., August 198-25, 19

2] Synod was unanimously into by the

0]
-
]
)
[
T

ot

e members already in fellowship were The

Lan and

DU R | o . e e L
and became the pa

¥

SJune 4

P
Pl VAN

home were in the works. &and finally, on

: s I S I " LI R R
Mav 30, 1948 there a in S8lavia, Florida a Children's

T 9
and a Home folks (8ynod 9).

The conventlon on which thalt org Was

depressi

cudahy in 1937 at the heigh

" ] 1 S - a.]?
{ ad to tnat 24

congre

15). In Gax:

averwhelmingly

Woorgan

nav School and to buy a




R k!

nard vears in our country the Lord did not to blegs his

shown

ations,

a month, And the next

DA

18232, they were offered twice a 22247,

Buf not until 193% did 8t, Luke's in Slavia, Florida offer even an

3

And it took a few

ish morning services (SELC). The Synaod

rd to do mission work in

the Engl

wguage

i

i

o
o
£
Py
X3



vbrating on

,._.
=
h
D

& q

Y ILOG

they could keen

Hop

aid LC-MS and what would be ELCA in becoming

Some

would

1 t i Ty, Fho Ty




]

<
Pl

1
Ll

o

e

SRS

¢

<

]

o

o)

ok )
ta 5
= =

4

nod .

oY




Q£

o}

£

o
P .

fel
o

s




-
&

et

O

™
L

e

4

bt







Yo

st. luke’s lutheran chiurch

P.O, BOX 276 ¢ OVIEDO, (BLAVIA) FLORIDA 3276% ° PHONE 364.34008
HWY, 426 2 Mi. 8W OVIEDO

‘December 31, 1970

dear fellow believers in Christ,

In a recent brother-to=brother letter from the president
of cur Synod ve were reminded of the merger in which the SELC
becomes a nen-geographical District of the LCHS, This step
formally tales place on January 1, 1971, 4mong his recommesnda-
tions Dre Preus suvggested that, where feasible, Missouri
Synod Gonorﬂcatﬂjns arrange for a joint service on January 1.
or soon thereafter with an adjacent SELC parish in either one
of ‘the th churches, depending on size and preference, with
the cheice to be given to thm SELC congregation and with the
Hissourdi Synod pastor perhaps offering to fill the pulpid,.

Dr,. Auzgust Bovrthal acted on these recommendations and
amm*nted a commibtltee to arranpge foy such a service, We arve
inviting vou to JOlH us for that service at St. Luke's Ev,
Lutheran Church Route 426 near Red Bug Road, two miles South
West of Ogviedo on Sunday, January 10, 1971 at |, P.M,

PruSLdnnt of the Florida~Gecorgia District will spe-k h

sErmon, Pasvors - He AJxom, Go Seaman, J.J, Hucheax

ari D g Uanlel will serve as liturgists, Uthe

invited.to worship, attired please in clerical suits (‘ot

Jcstmonts) and join in a processional, Pews will be reserved

for pastors., Adjacent pews will be reserved for pastors wives
nd families, Ve are also holding several pews in reserve for

the Boards of Directors o

Prince of Peace, Trinity, and Redeemer Sanford,
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Following the service the ladies of 5t. Luke's will serve
light refreshments in the school,

Cordially in Christ,

The Ccmmittee
H, Abram .
G, Seaman

. Js« J. Kucharik

ff the nesrest sister churches, Ascension,



CAPSULE HISTORY OF ST. LUKE'S

Oviedo (Slavia),Florida

March 17, 1912 congregation founded. Small church erected
_from lumber of old shacks. - Visiting pastor and summer vicars
supplied spiritual food during almost 20 year period, October 15,
1933 Pastor.S,., M. Tuhy came as missionary,. In July 1934 Pastor

Tuhy granted Call by 5t. Luke'sﬁ accepted and installed July 31, ,
October 193} thirteen acres of land purchased. New parsonage 1935."
Pastor Tuhy married Olga Pankuch January 1936, New church dedicated
in 1939, A1l Slovak worship until this time. English vespers
begin once a month, In a few years English morning services begin,
In 1939 Masaryktown conpgregation organized and scrved by S. Tuhy

1l years. In 1937 five acres offered SELC for a Lutheran Haven
(children's Home and Home for aged). Haven chartered as nonprofit
corporation in June 1946, First two buildings dedicated in Hay '
1948, Today it comprises 60 acres, two children's cottages, “home
for the aged (to be expanded 23 additional residents), superintendent
home, and a retirement village of 8 cottages., Cottages consist of
some four apartment units and some two apartment units. 194 St.
Luke'l's starts nursery school. 1947 opening of Christian Day School,
grades 1 and 2 and li, one teacher. Grades added each year,

Currently K- - 9 grades with staff of 11 teachers. ' Church enlarged

in 1957, April 1952 radio broadcasting begun from WIRE Sanford, later

WKIS Orlando., Still broadcast each Sunday, 9:30 A.M. December 1967
S, M., Tuhy died. May 1968 J.J. Kucharik installed.
S YNOD
(SELC)

Founded 1902 Connelsville, Pennsylvania.' At very outset declared
fellowship with LCMS., Trained all our pastors and teachers at LOMS

schools and seminaries. Entered into Synodical Conference in 1908
and retained membership until its final dissolution. Presidents of

SELC: D. Laucek 1902 - 1905; J. Pelikan 1905-1913 and 1919-1921;

S. Tuhy, Sr, 1913 - 1919; J. Somora 1921 - 19223 J. Bradac 1922 -
19393 A. Daniel 1939 - 1949; P. Rafaj 19L9 - 1962; J. Kovac 1962 -
1969; M. Ontko 1969 mdﬁ@w At one time were almost successful in
uniting all the Slovak Lutheran Congregatizons in U.S5.A. into 1 Synod,
There exists today a [LCA Slovak Syncd operating as a District., SELC
Missions concentrate/particularly,in the Canadian field, Montreal,

and Ontario, working/particularly among-Slavic immigrants. Over a
quarter century ago pegan Mission work Jugoslavs and Slovak immigrants
in the Chaco Province of Argentina, South America.’ Field now :
supports three native pastors, two of which work in Slovak and
Spanishe Our largest corcentration of SELC members exists in the
metropolitian areag |of the last and Midvest of U.S.A. Latest
statistics 6L congfegations and parishes, mission stations 21,000
souls, are 55 activl pastors. "We are one in the Spirit, we are

one in the Lord," ' /
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April 27, 1984

fZTHE SLOVAK EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH

Hlstorlcal Backgraund

Ten Tasks;

15t Convocation
Cudahy, Wisconsin

SELC DISTRICT OF LCMS

. Introduction:vﬂ The Slovak Immlgrant ”wﬁ““m me“,.m”;muW”_mewmm”m,w S T

(Slovensko evanjelicka Augsburgskeho vyznanle celoc1rkev e
v Spogenych Statoch Ame*lckych) : e

Ilf"Ce}oclrkev" z de51gnates a general Church Body . iikupff?-

Organized: September 2-4, 1902
Connellsville, Pa. @ St, Peter Lutheran Church
Representation: 10 pastors; 4 laymen; 15 congregations;
4 laypersons as guests including Jan Bajﬁs
First President: The Rev. Daniel Z. Laucek !
English Secretary: The Rev. Karol Hauser
The Constitution
The Seal: The Good Shepherd
Sacrament of the Altar to be administered to mature Chrlstzans
First CEF?:  Each congregatlan should appoint a special
collector of monies for the Synodical
Building Fund.
LCMS: The new Syncd was of one mind with the “orthodox"

Missouri Synod.

 DOLAK: "The Synod was confronted by a multitude of problems which clamored for solution.
The Syﬁod was eager to gr-w and to gain new pastors, but it was determined not to

relax its requirements for membership.’

~ "Church Inspector': Chiefly concerned about the care of

property; not the pastor, doctrine
or spiritual matters.

THE SYNODICAL CONFERENCE

Organized: July 10-16, 1872 at Milwaukee and at that time held its first convention.

The Synodical Conference was a federation of four synods:

The Lutheran Church - Missouri'Synod (1872)

The Joint Synod of Wisconsin and Other States (1872)

The Norwegian Synod of thé American Ev. Lutheran Church (1920%
The Slovak Ev. Lutheran Church of America (1908)

President Jan Pelikan, preSident of the Slovak Ev. Lutheran Church, was present at the

Synodical Conference Convention; New Ulm, Mn., August 19-25, 1908, at which time the

Siovak Synod was unanimously accepted into membership by the Synodical Conference.



2.
The Syncdical Conference held its last convention, July 1966, in Chicago, with the

Convention Service at Zion, Norridge, I1., July 13, 1966,

THE NAME CHANGE
In 1959 the name of our Synod was changed to THE SYNOD OF EV. LUTHERAN CHURCHES.

Reasons: Diminishing work in Slovak language

Evangelism in our communities

Name''Slovak' was limiting, confining, misleading

TOWARD BECOMING A DISTRICT

Climate of the time: Dissolution of the Synodical Conference
Relationship between SELC and LCMS
Pastors and teachers trained by LCMS

LCMS Convention: At the LCMS Convention in Detroit, June 16-26, 1965 and invitation

was extended to the SELC to merge with the LCHMS.

SELC CONVENTION: At the SELC Convention in 1965 it was resolved to appoint

a five man committee to study all aspects of merger and to meet

with the officials of the LCMS.

At the 1967 SELC Convention the Merger Study Committee reported

to the convention and was authorized to continue its study of merger.
In 1969, Clark, N.J., resolution 69:01 called for the SELC-LCMS

Union Agreement which was approved.

SELECTED CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENT
1, A change in the corporate name of the SELC to 'SELC District of the Lutheran Church-

Missouri Synod."

2. The SELC shall become a non-geographical district, to be known as the "SELC District'.

3, The plan of merger was to be effective on or about the opening day of said 19877
LCMS Convention. "With the consent of each party, the effective date of the merger
may be advanced or postponed.

4. Upon the Consummation Date the President of Synod shall assign the congregations,
pastors and teachers of the SELC to the proper geographic districts of the Missouri
Synod.

5. The Consummation Date may be advanced or postponed either by the Missouri Synod
of the SELC District, and the SELC District is also free to withdraw from this
agreement.

6. The agreement may be amended by mutual consent.

7. There is also a Church Extension Fund Document.

8. There is a Pension and Annuity Document.



3.

ﬁISTORY - as the SELC District

SELC became an LCMS District as of January 1, 1971.

Service of Commemoration: January 12, 1971, at Garfield, N.J.
President J.0.A. Preus and President Milan Ontko

1st Convention: November 14-16, 1972 at Slavia, Florida

2nd Convention: August 23-25, 1974 at Bloomington, Mn.

Call to extend the Consummation Date for 3 primary reasons:
1. Funding the Pension Fund
2. Plans for amalgation of U.S. & Canadian Missions

3, Continuing operation § support of the Lutheran Haven

3rd Convention: August 13-15, 1976 at Cudahy, Wisconsin

Call for an Interim Report for 1978 SELC Convention

Call for the appointment of a 4th member to Merger Commission

Call to study all aspects of the proposed amalgamation |
including relationships of SELC Congregations to the
geographical districts of the Synod.

IHPORTANT MEETING - September 20, 1977 at St. Louis, Mo.

a, Expressions of mutual appreciation for SELC District
b. No inclination to withdraw nor any reluctance to continue
in the agreement.
c. Expressed value in continuing as a non-geographical district.
d. SELC will continue to study all aspects of the consummation
and will survey our congregations.

e. Agreed on an 'open-ended" date regarding consummation

SURVEY REPORT

51 out of 55 congregations responded to the survey. 28 replies indicated there would be
no advantage through the proposed amalgamation; 27 responses indicated no disadvantages

to continue as at present.

th Convention: June 22-25, 1978 at Garfield, New Jersey.

Members of the Advisory Commission were requested to
consider the viable alternatives of continuing the

SELC as a separatc independent Lutheran Church body.

5th Convention: June 19-22, 1980 at Lakewood, Ohio
Report of the Advisory Commission presented:
That we continue as a non-geographical LCMS District
That we rejoice in fellowship with LCMS
c. That together we continue to serve the Lord.
Report was accepted together with recommendations.

o' ®
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6th Convention: June 10-13, 1982 at St. Louis, Mo.

The matter of forming a Canadian Circuit in Ontaxio
was tabled.

7th Convention: April 1985 at Slavia, Florida

N.B.: No meeting of the full commission is scheduled.

The consummation date remains open-ended.

BENEFITS, BLESSINGS, PRIVILEGES, RESPONSIBILITIES AS A DISTRICT OF LCMS:

1. Training -of pastors and teachers; assignment of vicars; calls to candidates.

2 Concordia Health Plans: Health Benefits; Retirement Program; Death benefits.

3. Mission opportunities through cooperation with geographic districts of LCMS.

4. Growth opportunities through cooperation with geographic‘districts.énd Synod for
officers, board members and committees.

5, Support of Synod, especially in the Mission of the Church. Ex. F.I.R,

N.B.: We are not coasting as a district.

THREE CIRCUITS OF THE SELC DISTRICT:

Western Circuit CENTRAL Circuit Eastern Circult |
Counselor: Rev. E. Velebir Counselor: Rev., J. Kucera Counselor:Rev.Kritsch
1st V.P.: Rev. L.J, Bajus President: Rev. Dr. A. Marcis 2nd VP:Rev.Jos.Kucharik
Size: 39 Districts in the LCMS. Six districts between 15-20,000 communicants.

We are not the smallest district. (Two are smaller in numbers.)

Convocations: "Circuits shall arrange for a Circuit Convocation, which is a larger ga-
thering of members from Circuit congregations held during a year in_which
there is no synodical or District convention.. Its purpose is to provide a setting in
which congregational members may know of and celebrate the ministry pursued by eagh con-
gregation, may review and discuss the work of the Circuit Forum, and may receive 1nfo?ma—
tion on various phases of the work pursued through Districts and the Synod. As such, 1ts
emphasis should be on inspiration, education and motivation.' (4.51 Functions p. 128)

Circuit Forum: "Each congregation shall be represented at the Circuit Forum at least
by its pastor and one member designated by the congregation, a%thoggh
each Circuit may request additional representation depending on its adopted objectives.
The Circuit Forum will meet at least twice a year." (4.31 Representation p. 127)




